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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as
Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as
at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors® Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited)

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
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ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  the adverse remark relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 32 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(ily The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 32 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility except that audit trail at database level to log any direct data changes has been enabled
starting from 3 February 2025. Except for the audit trail at the database level for the period till 3
February 2025, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the period for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with during the course of our audit. Additionally, the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, except for the
period for which the audit trail feature was not enabled.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:10%248W/W}100022

q.

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 2225156
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order
is not applicable.

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified
every year. In accordance with this programme, property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(j)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@)  The Company is a service company, primarily rendering asset management services to mutual
fund schemes. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause
3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms
and limited liability partnership during the year. The Company has made investments and
granted loans to other parties.

(@) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to other parties as below:

Page 5 of 11



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

v

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
(Rs. in millions) nature of loans

Aggregate amount during
the year

Subsidiaries™ - - - -
Joint ventures® - - - -
Associates™ - - - -
Others - - 0.55 -

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date
Subsidiaries*

Joint ventures™ - - = -
Associates* - - = -
Others* - - = -

*As per the Companies Act, 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made, during the year and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal has been
stipulated and the repayments have been regular. There is no interest charged by the Company
on such loans given to its employees.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act"). In respect of the investments made by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of
Section 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

©

()

(x) (a)

(b)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us,
the company did not have any dues on account of duty of customs and Employees State
Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax or Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly,
reporting on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

(xi) (@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Establishment of vigil mechanism is not mandated for the Company. As represented to us by
the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received under the vigil mechanism
established voluntarily by the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The'Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 632.72 million in the current financial year and
Rs. 437.88 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset

Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/VY-100022

1

Rohit Alexander

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAl UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Groww Asset
Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited) (‘the
Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Groww Asset Management Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited) for the year ended 31 March 2025 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/Vy-100022

T

Rohit Alexander

Partner
Place: Mumbai _ Membership No.: 222515
Date: 30 June 2025 ICAI UDIN:25222515BMJHXJ3068
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Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Balance sheet

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 3 0.19 0.08
Trade receivables 4 24.26 13.06
Investments 5 1,794.49 1,730.77
Other financial assets 6 1.27 8.05
Total financial assets 1,820.21 1,751.96
Non financial assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 579 2.51
Right-of-use assets 8 - 17.38
Other non-financial assets 9 104.45 26.47
Current tax assets (net) 23 249 1.98
Total non-financial assets 112,73 48.34
Total assets 1,932.94 1,800.30
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lcase liabilities 8 - 17.40
Trade payables

i. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 10 - 0.17

ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 10 146.28 120.11

small enterprises
Total financial liabilities 146.28 137.68
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 11 72 6.48
Other non-financial liabilities 12 7.69 9.69
Total non-financial liabilities 15.40 16.17
Total liabilities 161.68 153.85
Equity
Equity share capital 13 2,032.19 1,625.21
Other equity 14 (260.93) 21.24
Total equity 1,771.26 1,646.45
Total equity and liabilities 1,932.94 1,800.30
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for B S R & Co. LLP

Chjftered Acequntants
Fifn] Registratjpn Number: 101248 W/W-100022
-~

Tk

Rohit Alexander
Partner
Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30,2025

_ Date: June 30,2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls

Asset Management Company Limited)
CIN: U65991KA2008PLC180894

Harsh Jain
Director
DIN: 05321547

%) Ashish Ghel
Director
DIN: 03067864

Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 30,2025

N4

Co pan'y; Secrelary
Memmbership No. : A26472

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025

Gl

Chief Executive Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025

P b

Pratilk Lakhotia
Chief Financial officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025



Groww Assct Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Statement of profit and loss

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

Note Faor the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
Fees and commission income 15A 27.58 19.42
Interest income 15B - 9.08
Net gain on fair value changes 16 141.84 86.74
Total revenue from operations 169.42 115.24
Other income 17 1.45 0.57
Total income 170.87 115.81
Expenses
Finance costs 18 1.27 1.60
Employee benefits expense 19 282.66 165.56
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 9.67 7.62
Other expenses 21 452.65 326.62
Total expenses 746.25 501.40
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Tax expense
Current tax 22
(i) for current year - -
(ii) relating to earlier years - (0.24)
Deferred tax (credit)/ expense 22 - (7.55)
Total tax (credit)/expense - (7.79)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (575.38) (377.80)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined employee benefit plans 0.19 (1.25)
Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprehensive income / (loss), net of tax 0.19 (1.25)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (575.19) (379.05)
Earnings per equity share in INR (Face value: INR 10/- per share) 26
Basic earning per share (3.15) (3.08)
Diluted earning per share (3.15) (3.08)
Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
SR & Co, LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
tered Accguntants Management Company Limited)
h Registratjgn Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U65991KA2008PLC180894
N
Rohit Alexander _~Harsh J,
Partner Director
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 05321547 DIN: 03067864
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025 Jate: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,‘%025 Date: June 30,2025
\ ) R
LAY N
Ros! Dave - Pratik Lakhotia

Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
Membership No. : A26472

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Dale: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of changes in equity

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
As at April 01, 2023 1,000.00
Tssue of equity shares 625.21
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.21
Issue of equity shares 406.98
As at March 31, 2025 2,032.19
B. Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Securities Retained
Premium earnings
As at April 01,2023 - 10.50 10.50
Profit /(Loss) during the year - (377.80) (377.80)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - (1.25) (1.25)
Sccuritics premium on issuc of equity shares 380.79 - 389.79
As at March 31,2024 389.79 (368.55) 21,24
Profit /(Loss) during the year - (575.38) (575.38)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) - 0.19 0.19
Securities premium on issue of equity shares 293.02 - 293.02
As at March 31, 2025 682.81 (943.74) (260.93)

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
for BS R & Co. LLP
Charf¢red Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Membership No. : 222515

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30,2025

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset
Management Company Limited)

CIN: U65991KA2008PLC180894

Harsh'Jain a upta

Director Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 05321547 DIN: 03067864

Place; Jaipur Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengalurn

Date: Junc 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025

W |

ate: June 30,2025

Pratik Lakhotia
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer
Membership No. : A26472
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9.67 7.62
Net gain on fair value changes on mutual funds (141.84) (86.74)
Net gain on fair value changes on bonds - 15.50
Balance written back 0.23 -
Interest from fixed deposit - (3.56)
Interest from bonds - (5.52)
Interest on unwinding of security deposits (0.38) (0.31)
Finance costs 1.27 1.60
Operating cash flows before warking capital changes (706.43) (457.00)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (12.00) (11.49)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 6.78 41.76
(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets (771.98) (25.15)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 26.26 119.55
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilitics = =
Increase/(decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (2.00) (28.32)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 1.42 4.63
Cash used in operations (763.95) (356.02)
Income taxes paid, net of refund (0.51) (7.33)
Net cash generated from/(used) in operating activities (A) (764.46) (363.35)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5.50) (3.51)
Fixed deposit placed - (739.20)
Redemption of fixed deposits - 1,049.20
Purchase of mutual funds (1,921.13) (3,891.29)
Proceeds from sale of mutual fund 1,999.26 2,345.17
Proceeds from sale of bonds - 580.87
Interest from fixed deposit - 3.56
Interest from bonds - 5.52
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing activities (B) 72.63 (649.68)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securities preimum) 700.00 1,015.00
Repayment for lease liabilities 6.79) (5.35)
Interest on lease liabilities (1.27) (1.60)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 691.94 1,008.05
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 0.11 (4.98)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 0.08 5.06
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.19 0.08




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Statement of cash flows

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash on hand = =
Balances with banks in current accounts 0.19 0.08
Taotal cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 3) 0.19 0.08

Notes:
The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the “Indirect method” as set out on the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7) Statement of cash flows.

Material accounting policies (Refer Note 2)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R & Co. LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management

Chpartered Accquntants Company Limited)
Fifm Registratipn Number: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U65991KA2008PLCI1808%4
Rohit Alexander HarsH Jain Ashish Gpel upta

artner Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. : 222515 DIN: 05321547 DIN: 03067864
Place: Mumbai Place: Jaipur Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025
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shan Dave Pratik Lakhotia
Company Secretary Chief Financial officer

Membership No, : A26472

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 30,2025 Date: June 30,2025



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Al amonnts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
1. Corporate Information

Groww Asset Management Limited (‘the Company’) (earlier known Indiabulls Assel Management Company Limited (“*IAMCL") as incorporated on 10th April 2008
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2813 is a Public Limited Company damiciled in India, The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment
manager to Groww Mutual Fund ("the Fund”}. The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI" under SEBI (Mutual Fund) Repulations,
1996 as amended. The Company manages {lie investment portfolio of the Fund and provides various adminisirative sexvices to the Fund and Trustee Company. The
registered office address of the Company is Vaishnavi Tech Park, South Tower, 3rd Floor,Survey No.16/1 and 17/2, Ambalipura Village, Varthur Hobli, Betlandar,
Bangalore, Bangnlore South, Karnataka, India, 560163.

Pursuant f0 Share Purchase Agreement dated May 11, 2021, between Groww yvest Tech Private Limited (formely known as Nextbiltion Technology Private Limited)
(“Campany™) and Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited (crstwhile Sponser), and Indiabufls Asset Management Company Limifed for the acquisition of [00%
shareholding of Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited (“IAMCL”} and Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited (“ITCL"), all the necessary approval was received
and accordingly, the Company paid an aggregate purchase consideration of INR 17,562 Lakhs (including cash and cash equivalents of TNR 10,062 Lakhs) for the
acquisition of 100% share capital of IAMCL and ITCE and all the equity shares stand (o be transferred (Demat and physical) to Growsy Invest Tech Private Limited
(formely known as Nextbillion Technofogy Private Limited) on May 03, 2023, and pursuant to this IAMCL and ITCL have become the wholly owned subsidiary of
Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (formely known as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) effective from May 03, 2023,

Subsequently, pursuant to share purchase agreement dated August 19, 2024 executed between Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited {formerly known as Billionbraing
Garage Ventures Private Eimited), Groww Invest Tech Private Limited and the Company, Rillionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formerly known as Billionbrains
Garage Ventures Private Limited) acquired 100% of the share capital of Groww Asset Management Limited from Groww Invest Tech Private Limited.

4, Material accountlng policies

Basis of preparation and presentation
The financial statements of the Company comply in all materiat aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (ihe ‘Act’) read with the Companics (Indian Acconnting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other rclevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind A8 1- Presentation of Financial Statements as notificd under the Companics (Indian Accounting
Standards) Itules, 2015 read with Seclion 133 of the Campanies Act, 2013,

The Balance Sheet, the Stalement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss and disclosures are presented in the format prescribed under Division 11T of
Schedule IIf of the companies Act, as amended frem time to time that are required to comply with Ind AS, The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the
reqnirements of Ind A§ 7 Staiement of Cash Flows.

The financial statements have beeh prepared under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis, except for cerfain financial assets and liabilitics.
The financia) statesents are approved for issuc by the Campany’s Board of Dirccters on June 30, 2025.

Accounting policies have been consistently applicd except where newly issued accounting standacd is initially adopted or a revision 1o an existing accounting standard
vequires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR)/Rs.}, which is also its functional
carrency and al} values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when etherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies applicd in the preparation of the financiat statcments are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unfess otherwise stated.

a. Property, piant and equipment
i Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s
cariying amount.

Hems of property, plant and equipment are initially recarded at cost. Cost comprises acquisition cost, borrowing cest if capitalization criteria arc met, and divectly
attributable cest of bringing he assel fo its working condition for the intended vse. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with these will fluw with the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress are property, plant and equipment which are not yet ready for their intended use, Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding
at each reporting date are shown as other non-financial assets. Depreciation is not recarded an capital work-in progress unti! eanstruction and instatlation is completed
and asscts are ready for iis intended osc.

Tterns of Property, plant and equipment that have been retived from uctive use and are held for disposal are staied nf the fower of their net book value or net realisabic
value and are shown separately in (he financial statements, if any.



Groww Asset Management Limited {Formerly known as Indiahulls Asset Managenent Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Marek 31, 2025

(AN amounts are in INR Millions wnless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)
ii. Depreciation

Depseciation provided on property, plant and equipment is catculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives specified in Schedule 11 of
the Act.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the eurrent and comparative pesiods are as follows:

Asset Management's estimate of nseful life Usceful life as per Schedute IT
Office Equipments 5 years 5 years

Laptop 3 years 3 years

Furnitures 10 years 10 years

Depreciation is pravided on a straight line basis from the date the usset is ready for its intended use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to tse date of
disposal, The residual values, estisnated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
changes it any, are accounled for on a prospective basis.

Emprovernents to leaschold premises are amortised over the Jease term or useful lives of the assets, whichever is lower.,

fi,  De-recognifion

The carying amount of an item of propesty, plant and equipment is devecognized on disposaf or when 1o fuluie ceonomic benetits are expeeted from its use or disposat.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition, dispasal or retirement of an item of property, plant and cquipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the canying amount of the usset and are recagnised net, within “Other Income™ or “Other Expenses”, as {he case muybe, in the Statement of Profil and Loss
in ¢he year of derecopnition, dispasal or resirement.

b. Intangible assets

An intangible assel is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are atiributable to it will
flow to the Company. Tntangible assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. Intangible assets acquired separately
are measured on initial recognition at cest. Followiny initial recognition, intangible assels are catried at cost Jess accumulated amostization.

i Amortisation

Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method on the cost of intangible asscts aver their estimated useful lives and is included in the statement of profit and
loss.

c. Revenue from Contracts with customers

Revenue is measurcd al fransaction price (net of variabic consideration, if any). Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of e gaods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expeets to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Company recognises revense frot contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 155

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the criteria for every confract that must be met.

Step 2: Tdentify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is u promisc in a contract with a customer to transter a good or service to the
customer.

Step 3: Determine the dransaction price: The fransaction price is the amount of consideration 1o which the Company expecis o be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts cotlected on behalf of third parties.

$tep 4: Allocate the transaction price 1a the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has mare than ane performance obligation, the Company allocates
the transaction price to cach performance ebigation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitfed in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company recognises revenne from the following sources:

{a)income from fees and commission income is recagnised upon completion of services, in accordance with the terms of contract which is satisfied at a paint in time

(b) The campany has the right 1o cansideration which is unconditional but an invoice for the same has not been raised accordingly it is classified as wnbilled revenuc

under trade receivable,
Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are trealed as Habilities and adjusted against billing us per terms of the contract.



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)
i. Dute of Recognition

Financial assels and financial liahilities are recognised in the Company's halance sheet when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractuat provisions of the
instrument.

ii. [Initia Measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposils and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, ie. the date that the
Company becomes 4 party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument. Recognised financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are
directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilitics, as appropriate, on initiai recognition. Transaction costs dircctly attributable 1o the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilitics at fair valuc thraugh
profit or loss are recognised immediately in prefit or loss,

iif, Classification and Subseguent Measurement
A, Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specifie elections where appropriate, the Company classifies and measures
financial assets in the following catejories ;

a) Amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at Fair value throngh profit ar
loss (FVTPL):
« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald assets to cotlect contractual eash flows (‘Asset held to collect contractual cash flows'); and
« tie contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sotely payments of principal and intetest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measuremen! and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flaws aad SPPIL, such financial assets ase
subsequently meastired at amortiscd cost using effective interest rate (*EIR') method. Interest income and impairment expenses are recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit er loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction cests and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amournt on initial recognition.

b) Fair value through other comprchensive income (FVOCT): Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objeetive is both to collect the contractual
cash fiows and to sell the asscis, (‘Conteactual cash flows of assets celiccted through hold and sell model'y and contractual cashi flows that are SPPL, are subsequently
measured at FYOCT. Movements in the canying amount of such financial ussets are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (*OCI'), except interest f dividend
income which is recognised in profit and loss. Amounts recorded in OCI are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of debt instrumenis
however, in case of equily instruments it will be directly iransferred to reserves, Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject 1o an impairment agsessment,

¢) Falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for calegorisatien as at amortised cost or as FVOCI or either designated,

are measured at FYTPL. Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in profit or lass. The Company records investments in equity instruments and muual funds at
FVTPL.

B. Financial liabifities

Debl and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the subslance of the contractuat
arsangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity Instrument - An equity instrument is sny contract that evidences 4 residual intercst in the assets of an enlity afier deducting all of its liabilities, Equity
instruments issued by the Greup is recognised at the value of proceeds received, net of directly atiributable transaction costs,

{b) Financial Liabilities - Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are initially recognised at fair valne and subseguently determined
based on the EIR method. Interest expensc is recognised in profit o foss. Any gain or foss on de-tecognition of financial liabilities is also recognised in profit or Joss. The

Group does not have any financial Iiability which are measured at FVTFL.

Financial liabilities are carvicd at amoriised cost using the effective interest rate method. For trade and other payables, the camrying amount approximates the fair value
due to short maturity of these instruments.

In order to show how fair values huve been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised below:




Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly laiown as Endiabulls Asset Managemeni Company Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2625

(Al amants are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)
Mlaterial accounting policies (cont'd)

Level 1 : Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to
at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active enly if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical
assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance shect date.

Level 2 : Those where the inputs that ase used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indircctly observable markel data available over the entirc
period of the instrument’s tife.

Level 3 : Those that include one ar more unobservable inpul that is significant lo the mcasurement as whole.

v, Reclassifieation:
Financial assets and Habilities ate not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires,
disposes of, or terminates a business line or in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

w Derecognition:

{A} A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finaacial asset or purt of a group of similar financia asscts) is derccognised when:
+ The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or
« The Company has transferred its rights 1o reveive cash flaws from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, or
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred conirol of the asset.

I the Company neither transfess nor refaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transfesred asses, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for thie amount it may have lo pay,

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obiained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss
that had been recogniscd in GCl is recopnised in profit or joss (except for equity instruments measured at FYOCI).

(B} A financial fiability is derecogmised when the obligation under the ability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabitity are substantially modified, such an exchange er modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new financia} liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value. The difference between the carrying vatue of the original financial ability and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or
loss.

vi. Offsetting:
Financial nssets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net hasis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

vii, Tmpairment of finuncial assefs:

A. Trade receivables
The Company applics the Ind AS £09 simpfified approach to measuring expected credit losses whieh vscs a lifetime expected loss allowance (ECL) for alf trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 1o track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recogniscs inypairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected loss rates are
based an average of historical loss rate adjusted to reflect current and available forward fooking informatien affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

B. Other Financial Assets
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash Hows.

The gross carrying amount of a financiaf assct is writlen off (sither partially o in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Company determines that the deblor does not have assets or spurces of income that cauld generate sufficient cash flows te repay the amounts subject to the
write - off, However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject te enforcement activities under the Company’s Tecovery procedures, taking into account
legal advicc where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

d. Employee Benefits
L Shart-fevm employee benefits

Short-lerm employce benefits include salaries and short-lerm banus. A liabifily is recogniscd if the Company has u present legal or construclive obligation to pay Lhis
amount as a resuit of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid over the period of services rendered by the employees to the Company.

i, Gratuity
Every employes is entitled to a benefit equivalent ta £5 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The
same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or relirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vest afier five years of continuous service.

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit ptan. The Company's net abligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount
of fture beacfit that the cmployees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior period, Such benefit is discounted to determine its present vakue, and
the Tair valug of any plan assets, it any, is deducted.



Groww Asset Management Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Managentent Company Limited)
Nales to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(ANl amounts ave in INR Millions unless otherwise siated)
Material accounting pelicies (cont'd)

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit credit Method which recognises <ach
period of services as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit sepatately to build up the final obligation.

The abligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market yields
on Gevernment Securitics as at the balance sheet date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the pertod in which they occur, divectly in
other comprehensive income, They are included in retained camings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance shect.

iR Provident fund

The contribution to pravidest fund is considered as defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund sclieme as an expense, When an employee renders the related service.

iv. Share hased payment urrangentenis

The grant datc fair value of equity-sciiled share-based payment amangements granted lo emplayees is measured by reference to the faie value of the oplions using option
pricing model at the date on which the options are granted and generally recognised as an employee benefits expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
vesting period of the awards. The umount recognised as an expense is udjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service conditions are expected to be
met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based on the number of awards that meet the refated service conditions at the vesting date.

The cost of equity scttled share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the options using option pricing model at the
date on which the aptions are granted which takes into account market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The fair value is cxpensed over the period until the vesting date with recogaition of a corresponding liability to pay Ultimate Holding Company based on a cost recharge
artangement.

e, Foreign Exchange Transactions

Fransactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on seitlement of revenue
transaclions are recognised in he statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities contracted in foreign currencies are restated at the rate of exchange ruling at
the Balance Sheet date. Non-maonetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functiona currency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monctary asscts and labilitics that are measured based on historical cast in a forcign currency are translated at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

f. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on (he substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assels or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Company assesses
whether a conlract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or centains, a leasc if the contract conveys the right to contro the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exclange for consideration. To asscss whether a cantract conveys the right to contro! the use of an identitied assets, the Company assess whether
(8) the contract involves the use of an identificd assets; (i) the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assets through tlse period of the fease
and (jii} the Company has the right to dircet the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use assets (ROU) and 2 carresponding lease Yability for all lease armngements in which it
is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 month or less {short-term leases) and Jow value Jeases. For these short-term and fow value leases, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the [ease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when it is reasonably cerlain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement af the Jease liability, any lease payments made af or before the inception date of the
fease, less any fease incentives received, Subscquenily, the right-of-use asscts is measurcd at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accunwlated impairment Josses,
if any. The right-of-use ussets is depreciated using the straight line methad from the commencement date sver the shorler of lease term or useful life of right-of-use
assets.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability af the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The Jease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily determined. ¥ that rate is nol readily determined the lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liability has been included in borrowing and ROU asset hos beea separately presented in the Balance Sheet and fease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.

i. Investment in subsidiaries

Tnvestments in subsidiarics are measured al cost less accumulated impatrment, if any.
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Material accounting policies (cont'd)

g. Provisions, contingent labilities and contingenl assets

A provisian is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of 4 past event and it is probable that an outflow of embadying economic bencfits wiil
be required to settle the abligation and there is a relinble estimate of the amount of the wbligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required 1o settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate
of the expenditure required to seitle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at cach balance sheet date and adjusted to effect current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes forming part of restated consolidated financial statements. A Contingent liabiity is a possible
obligation arising from past cvents, the existence of which wilt be cenfirmed only by the occurcnce or non-oceurence of one or mors uncertain future events not whotly
within the cantrol of the Group or a preseat obligation that arises from past cvents but is not recopnised becuuse it is not probable that an outfiow of resources cmbodying
cconamic benefits will be required o settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sutficient refiability, Conlingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the restated consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Habilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes fonming part of financial statements. Contingent assels ase neither recognised nor disclosed in the
financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised when there is possible ebligation arising from past events, thie existence of which will be confirmed anly by the
occurence oF nan-occurence of one or more uncertain fiature events not wholly within the contral of the Campany.

h.  Fncome Tax

Income 1ax expense comprises current and deferred tax. [t is recognised in statement of profit and foss except 1o the extent that it relates to items recagnised directly in
equily or in OCL

() Current Tax

Current 1ax is measured at the amount expected ta be paid in respect of taxable income using tax rates enacted or substantively cnacted at the reporting date. Current tax
comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Cuerent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is vecognised outside profit or lass (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retuns
with respect to siluatians in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes previsions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are oifset only if the Company has a legally enforcenble right to set off the recognised ameunts, and it intends to realisc the
asset and settle the labifily an a net basis or simultaneously.

(i) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect on temporary differences arising between the tux bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.

Deforred tax asscls arising mainly on account of carry forward losses and unabserbed depreciation under tax laws are recognised only if there is reasonable ceriainty of
its realisation, supporied by convincing cvidence.

Deferred tax asscts on account of other temporary differences are recognised only to the extent that there &5 reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Deferred tax nssets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax Jaws fhat fiave been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. Changes in
deferred tax assets / liabilities on account of changes in enacted tax rates are given effect to in the standalone statement of profit and foss in the petiod of the change. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets arc reviewed at cach Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax ligbilities are off set when there is a fegally enforceable right to sel-off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred lax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,

i, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cush cguivalents includes cash on hand and balance with bank in cirent accounts, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertibie ta known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cash and short-term deposits are considered integral part of the Company's ¢ush management.

j.  Bankbalances othor than eash and cash equivakents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents includes fixed deposits with banks with original maturitics of twelve months or fess.
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(Al amonunts are in INR Millions wmless athenwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd)

k. Tmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesscs at cach balance shect date whether there is any indication thal an assct may be impaired. An asset is impaired when the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its vecoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an assct is identificd as impaired. An
impairment loss is reversed 1o the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that woukd have been determined if no impairment loss bad
previously been recognised.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determéned for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of these from other assets ar groups of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated fisture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time vilue of meney and the
risks specific to the asset, Tn determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken inlo aceount, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used,

1. Segment reporting

The ultimate holding company prepares the cunsolidated financial statements. In uccordance with Ind AS 188 on operating segments, the Company has not disclosed ihe
segments information in the standalone financiai stalements.

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates reseurces based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. The Board of directars who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments have been identified as the CODM.,

m. Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and dibuted earnings per equity share. Basic earnings per equity share huve been computed by dividing nel profitloss attributable to the
equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares eutstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by
dividing the net profit attribulable to the equity share holders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity
shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period/year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

n, Cash flow statement
Cash flows arc reported using the indirect method, wheseby profit before tax is adjusted for the offects of transactions of a non-cash naturc and any deferrals or accraals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

o, Business Combination

Business combinations are aceounted for by applying the acquisition method as at the date of acquisition, which is the date on which contrel is transferred o the
Company. Fdentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. When the
Company acquires a business, it assess (he financial assets and liabilifies assumed for appropriate classification and designation. In accordance with conlractual terms,
econamic circumstances, and pertinent conditions as at acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable net
assels acquired and attributable to the owners of the Company is recorded as goodwitl. The cost of an acquisition is measured as lhe aggregate of the consideration
tansferred, which is measured at the acquisition date fair value and the amount of a non-contiolling interest in the acquire. Transaction costs incurred in cannection with
a business acquisition are expensed as and when incurred. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in
the fair value of contingent consideration are recognised in Standalone Statement of Prefit and Loss. Contingent censideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settiement is acconnted for within equity.

If 4 business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measnred at its agquisition date fair value and any resuiting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or ¢ircumstances indicate that the implied fair value is Jess than its carrying amount.

0. Use of estimates and judgements

The prepasation of financial statements in cenformity with Ind AS requires that the management make estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of
accounting policics and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and vnderlying
assumptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis, Any revision to accounting cstimates is recognized prospectively in current and future years. In particular, isformation
about arcas of significant cstimation incertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policics that have a significant effect on the amounts secopnized in the
financial statements are included below:

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Infarmation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a signiticant risk of resulting in a material adjustment is included in the fotlowing notes:

(i) Depreciation and amortization

Depregialion and amortisation is based on management eslimates of the future useful Hves of the property, plant and cquipment and intangiblie asscts. Estimates may
change due to technological devefopments, competition, changes in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation and amortisation charges,

¢ii) Recagnition and measurenient of defined benefit obligations

Fhe abligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escatation, actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at ihe end of ihe reporting period on government honds. The
periad 1o maturity of the underlying bonds correspond ta the probable maturity of the post-cmpleyment benefit abligations. Doc to complexities involved in the valuation
and its long term vature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
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(A1) amonnts are in INR Millions unless atherwise stated)
Material accounting policies (cont'd}
(iiiy Fair value of financial instriumenis

Financia! instruments are required to be fair valued as at the balance sheet date as provided in Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 113, Being a critical estimate, judgement is
exercised 1o determine the carrying values. The Fair value of financial instruments that are unlisted and nat traded in an active market is determined at fair values
assessed based on recent transactions entered into with third pasties, based on vatuation dene by exicrnaf appraisers elc., as applicable.

(iv) Expected credit losses on financial assety

The Company recognizes loss alfowances for cxpected credit losses on its financial assets measured at amortized cast. At cach reporting date, the Company assesses
whether financial assets carried al pmortized cost arc credit- impaired. A financial asset is *credit impaired’ when onc ar morg events that have a detrimental impact ons
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

(v) Deferrad Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recagnized for the future tax consequences of lemporary differences between the carrying values of assels and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred fax assets are recagaized to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductibie
temporary differences could be utifized. Further details arc disclosed in Note 22,

(vi) Provision and contingencies
The tecagaition and mensurement of other provisions are based on the asscssment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and or past experience and
circumstances known at the reporting date, The actua! outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the anount included in other provisions.

(vii) Skave based paymenis

Estimating fair value for share based payment requires determination of the most apprepiiate valuation model. The estimate also requires determination of ihe most
appropriate inpuis to the valuation model including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend yicld and making assumsptions about them, The assumptions
and models used for cstimating fair value for share based payments transactions are discussed in Note 28 "Employee stack option plan" (ESOP).

(vii) Leuses

In determining whether an arrangement is, o contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, ot contains,
a lease date if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent eon the use of & specific assel or assels and the arrangesnent conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in the arrangement.

p. Operating cycle
Based on the time invalved hetween acquistion of asscts for processing and their realisation i cash and cash cquivalents, the Group has indentificd twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and lubilitics in the balance shesr,

q. Recenl Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA™) natifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
fram time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Tnsurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and
leaschack transactions, applicable to the Company w.c.f. 01 April 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its cvaluation has determined
that i does not bave any impact in ils financial statements.
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(Al amounts are in INR Millians unless othervise stated)

3 Cash and cash cquivalents

£

W

[

Asat Asal
March 31,2025 March 31, 2624
Balances with banks - In current accounts 0.19 0.08
Tutal iLE9 0.5
Trade recelvables
Asal Asal
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, Considered good 24.26 13.06
Trade receivables- credit impared - -
Tatal 24.26 13.406

No tradc ar other receivables are duc from directors or others officers of the Campany cither severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or ather reccivable are due from firms
or privale companies respeclively in which any director is a partner, a divector or a member.

Trade Reeetvables Ageing

Outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for fottowing pertods from date of transaction Totak
Particulars Less than 6 month | 6months - 1 year ] §-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 2.38 - - 2.38
Less: Impairment loss aliowance R
Addd; Unbilled revenue 21.88
Total 24.26
Outstending as x( March 31, 2024 for following periads rem date of transuction Fotul
Partleufars Less thars 6 month | 6 months- [ year [ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
Vours
(i) Undisputed Trade reccivabtes — considered good - - 0.81 - - 0.81
Less: Impairment loss allowance -
Add: Unbilled revenie 12.25
| Total 13.06
Investeents
Asat As at
Mareh 3F, 2005 March 31, 2024
Measuved at Falr value through profit er loss
Invesiment in Mutual funds - quoted 1,792.03 £,728.51
Invesiment In equity instrument at Fajy value through ather o ive income - unquated
MF Uglities India Private Limited 198 1.98
AMC Repo Clenring Limited 048 0.48
Total 1,794.49 1,730.77
Aggregnle amount of unguoted investment .46 240
Aggregale smount of quoted investment and market value lhereof 1,792.03 1,728.31
Other financial assels
Asat Asnt
Mavch 3E, 2015 Maych 31, 2024
(Unsecured, cansidered good)
Renial deposit 1.27 4.18
Receivable from telated parties (refer note 27) - 2.93
Advances to employees - .94
Total 17 8.05

The spatce has been left blonk intentionally
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Groww Asset Masagement Limtited (Formerly lmown as Indiabulks Assel Management Company Limited)
Nodes to the financial statensents for (he year ended March 31, 2025

(AN amonnix are in INR Millions unfess otherwise steded)
8 Leases
A contract is, or conlains, a lease it the contract conveys the fight 16 control the use of an identified assel for a periad of time in exchange for censideration.

Compeay as a fessee

The Company's lease asset class consists of lease for a premise. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, To assess whether a contracl
conveys the sight to control the use of an identified asset, e Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially alt of the
economic benefits from use of ths asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right 1o direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset {“ROU™) and a corresponding lease Hability for all lease arrangements in which it is a Jessee,
except for leases with a 1erm of twelve menths or less (short-term Leases) and low value leases,

For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments &5 an operating expense on & straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The company has not
recagnised any short terma feases,

Certain lease arrangements include the option 1o extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assels and Sease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The Aght-of-use assels are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initia} amount of the lease Hability adjusted for any prepaid lease plus any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Right-of-use assels are depreciated from the conimencement date on & steaight-line basis over the lease 1erm.

The lease liabifity is initially measured a1 amortized cost al the present vatue of the fisture lease payments. The lease payments ace discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the
company. Lease liabilities are se-measured with 2 correspending adjusiment 1o the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessmest on whether it will exercise an extension
or & termination aplion.

Lease Jiability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Shieet and lease payments of INR 8.06 Millions (March 31, 2024: TNR 6.95 miillion) have been classified as
cash flow generated from financing aclivity.

a

Carrying value of rvight of use assets st the end of the reparting period by class

Particulars Leaschold Properly
Balance as on April 01, 2024 §7.39
Additions y
Derecoynisation (9.94)
Depreciation (7.45}

Balance as on March 3, 2023 -

Particubrrs ) Leaschold Property

Balance as on April 01, 2023 .

Additions . 24.00
Derecognisation -
Depreciation (6.62)
Balance as on March 31, 2024 17.38

b} Carvyisg amounts of lease liabititles and the movements during the year:

As Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At the commencenent of the year {7.40 -
Additions - 2275
Reduction in Jiability (10.61) -
Accretion of interest 127 1.60
Paymenls {8.00} {6.95)
At the end of the year - 17,40
Current - 933
Non-curremt - 2.06
b} Maturity noalysis of lease liabilities
Maturity analysis - Contractual undiscousnted cash flows Asal Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than ong year - 1088
One to five years B 846
More than five years - -
Fotal andiscounted lease linbilities - 19.34
Eease liabitities included in the batance sheet - 17.40
¢} Amounts recogaised in profit or loss
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liabilities 1.27 1.60
Lease payments not included in lcase liabilities 679 5.35
d} Amousts recognised b the stateneat of cash flows
Asat Asat
Murch 31, 20258 March 31, 2024

Total cash oulflow for lerses 806 6.95
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MNates to the financlal statcments for the year ended Maveh 31, 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions inless othenwise staied)

9 Other non-financial assets

1

=

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(Unsecured, considered gond)
Balunces with government suthorities 92371 16.98
Prepaid cxpenses 8.4 9.25
Advances to suppliets 1,00 0.24
Totnl 114.45 16,47
Trade payables
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt ¢nterprises {refer note 29} - .17
Tolal ousstanding dues of creditors other thai micro enterprises and small enterprises
-~ Payable to related partics 40.95 40,63
- Other trade payable 105.33 79.48
‘Fatak 146.28 120.28
Trade Payables Ageing
As at Mavch 31,2028
Outstanding for lollowisg perlads from date of transaction ‘Total
Particutars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thaa 3 years
(i) MSME - - -
(si) Others 46.00 - 49.00
(ili) Disputed Dues- MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - -
{¥} Unbiiled 07.28
Tutul 49,00 - 146.28
As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for following periods from date of transactlon Futak
Particul E K .
urticulors Not duc Less than 1 year: £-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 017 - .17
{ii) Qthers 16.10 - 16.10
(iii) Disputed Dues- MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - -
(v} Unbilled 104.01 - 104.01
Tatal 120.28 - 120.28
Provisions
Asal Asat
Mavch 31,2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Provision for gratuity A 6.48
Taotal 7.7 6.48
Other non-financial liabilities
As at As at
March 31,2025 Murch 31, 2024
Statulory Duies payable 7.69 .69
TFotat T.6% 9.69

The space hos been Jeft blank intentionally
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13 Shavre capital

Asat Asaf
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorised share eapital

22,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 (March 3 [, 2024: 22,50,00,080 cquity shares) 2,250.60 2,250.80
2,250.00 2,250.60

Issued, subscribed and puid-up share capitel

20,32,18,903 £quily shares of Rs. |0 each (Mareh 31, 2024: 16,25,21,232) 2,032,190 1,625.21

Totat 2,032.19 1,625.21

(4} Reconciliation of shures outstunding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2625 As at March 31, 20234

Numher Amoant Number Amount
Equity shares
Al the commencement of the year 16,25,21,232 1,625.21 16,00,80,000 1,000.40¢
Add: Exsued during the year 4.06,97,671 406.98 6,25,21,232 62521
At the end of the year 20,32,18,963 2,032.19 16,25,21,232 1,625.21

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has anly one class of equity share, having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member hoiding cquity sharcs therein shall have voting rights in proporticn to their share
of the paid ap equity share capital. The holder of the equity shares shall be entitled fo dividend as and when declared by the Company in praportion to the members ot shure held. In
the event of siquidation of thie Company, the heklers of the equity shares will be entitled to share in the residual assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the
wumber of equity shares held.

() Particuars of Shares held by holding/ Witimate holding company and/ ar their subsidiaries/ associates:
Ax at Asat
§
Name of the skarehohler March 31,2025 _ March 31,2024
Equity shares with veting rights
Billiosbrains Garage Ventures Limiled {formely known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited) 20,32,18,903 -
Gireww Tovest Tech Private Limited (Formerly know as Nextbillivn Technology Private Limited) - 16,25,21,232
(d) Particulars of shareholders hulding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Numhber of shares N . Number of shares o
Name of the shareholder held % holding hetd Yo hokding
Equity shares
Rillionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (fonmely known as 20,32,18,903 100% - -
Billionbrains Garage Venlures Privale Limited)
Groww [nvest Tech Private Limited (Formerly koow as - - 16,25,2¢,232 100%
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)
(e} Particulars af sharchokling
Namic of the sharchilder As ot March 31, 2023 As 2t March 31, 2004
Number of shares o Number of shares 5,
held Y holding hetd %% Ralding
Billionbrains Gatage Ventures Limited (formely known as - .
Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private Limited) 20,32,18,903 100%
Groww Juvest Tech Private Limited (Forenercly know as
Nextbillion Technology Private Limited) and neminees - - 16,25,21,232 100%
() Aggregate number of shares issued for consideralion

There are no shares allotted as fally paid by way of honus shares or alloted as fully paid wp pursuant 10 contract without consideration other than cash, or hought hack during the period

of five years immedintely preceding the reputing date,



Groww Asset Nanagement Einidted (Formerly known as Indiabulls Asset Manag t Company Limited)
Notes to the finarcial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(AN amounis are in INR Mitlions uniess otherwise stated)

14 Other equity

As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2624
Retained earnings (i)} (943.14) {368.55)
Securities premi {ii) 682.8L 189,79
Total {260.93) 21.24
{i) Retalned carnings
Asal As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bakance at the commencemendt of the year {36R.55) $0.50
Add: Profit/ (Loss) during the year (575.38) (377.80)
Add; Re-measurement gains/(Jusses) un defined employee benefit plans (et of tax) 014 (1.25)
Balance at the end of the year {943,74) (368.55)
(H) Securlibes premlwmn
Particulars Asal As at
tarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balunce ot the commenceement of the year 389,79 -
Add: Premiwn received on issue of equity shares 293.02 389.7%
Balance 2t the ¢nd of the year 682.81 38974

Nature and purpnse nf reserves

d

Retained earnings:

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations whtich is retained by the Company is recagnised and accumulated under the heading "Retained Earnings”. At the end of the
yeur, the profit {loss) alter fax is iransferred from the statement of profit and Joss to retained eamings.

i} Securities preminm
Sccurilies premium is used to record the premius o issue of shates. The reserve can be utilised only for limsited purposc in accordunce with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013,

The space has been left blank intentionally
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15A Fees and commission income

L5B

16

17

18

For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fees and commission income 27.58 19.42
Total 27.58 19.42
. . N For the year ended  For the year ended
Disaggregation of Revenue from Operations March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Geographical markets
Within India 27.58 19.42
Oulside India " -
Total 27.58 19,42
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time 27.58 19.42
Services fransferred over time - -
Total 27.58 19.42

Interest income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
nterest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost :
(i) Fixed deposits with banks from treasury funds - 3.56
(ii} Interest On Bonds - 5,52
Totak - 9.08

Net gain on fair value changes

Far the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On financial instruments designated at fair value tirough profit or loss on investments :
(i) Realised gain on sale of mutual fuad 74.94 25.66
(i) Unrealised gain on mutual fund 66.90 61.08
Total 141.84 86.74
Other incomne

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2024

Taterest income on financial assets measured al amortised cost :

(i) Interest on unwinding of security deposits 0.38 031
Other income 1.05 0.26
Foreign exchange gains (net) 0.02 -
Total 1.45 0.57
Finance tosts

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on lease liahilities (refer note 8) 1,27 §.60
Total 1,27 1,60
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19

20

21

Employee henefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, atlowances, incentives and bonus 23035 145.78
Contribution to provident and other funds 5.05 3.51
Gratuity 239 L
Share based payments 37.13 11.75
Staft welfarc cxpenses 7.14 2.81
Total 182.66 165.56

Bepreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 222 1.00
Depreciation on right to use assets 7.45 6,62
Total 9.67 7.62
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

Professional and consulting charges 28.29 43.49
Transaction and other related charges 16.53 2.24
Mutual fund expenscs 7.24 891
Software, server and platform charges 5035 21.19
Rent and maintenance 19.08 12.55
Communication expenscs 2.13 0.21
Rates and taxes 1.1 12,20
Travelling and conveyance expenses 4.71 2.95
Marketing and business promotion expenses 316.34 201.27
Payments to anditor

-Statutory audit 1.00 0.85
Divector's sitting fee 4.80 4.39
Bank charges - 6.01
Foreign exchange losses (net) - 0.08
Realised loss on saic of bonds - 15.50
Miscelaneous expenses 1.07 0.78
‘Fotal 452,65 326.62
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22 Tneome Taxes

A. Amount recogniscd in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tix
In respect of current period - -
(ii) relating to earlier years - {0.24)
Total current tax expense - (0.24)
Defevred fux
In respect of current period - {7.55)
Total deferred tax expense - (7.55)
Income tax expense reported in the statenient of Profit and Loss - (7.79)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax (575.38) (385.59)
Tax at Indian tax ratc of 25.168% (31 March 2024 : 25.168%) - -
Effect of
Tax on expense not tax deductible - -
Others - {0.24)
Total tax expense - {0.24)
C. Carrent tax assets (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current tax asscts (Net) 244 1.98
. Current tax liahilities (Net)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cumrent tax liabilities(net) - -
E. Deferred Tax
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investments carried at fair value through profit ar
loss 16.84 1.54
Total deferred tax Jiabilities 16.84 1.54
Deferred tax assets
Propesty plant & Equipment 027 0.62
Disallowance of Expenses 0.60 1.90
Disallowance under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act,196F 1.72 1,72
On carry forward losses* 15.96 105.15
Total deferred tax assels 18.55 109.39

Net deferred tax labilities/ (Assety**

** Ngte: The Company has not recognised [TA for the cutrent year considering that there are no profits avaifable against which DTA can be utilised,

Futher refer note 22F. Unrecognised deferred tax assets.



Graww Asset Management Limted (Formerly known as Indiabutls Asset M
Nutes ta the financial statements for the year ended March 34, 2025

nt Company Limnlted)

(Al amounts are in INR Millions uniess otherwise stated)

23 Employee benelit ehligations

Defined Contribution Plan

Cantribution are made to Provident fusd in Indis for employees. The consributions are nade to registered Providenl fund administered by the Government. The expenses recognised
during the period lowards detined contribution plan is INR 2.33 million Jor the year ended March 31, 2025 {INR 1,7 million for the year ended March 31, 2024).

Nefined henefit plans

The Company provides far graluity for emplayees in India as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Employces who arc in continuous service for a period of 5 years are cligible for
gratuity. The amaunt of gratuily payahle on relirerent/termination is the cniployees Jast drawn basic salary per month computed propantionately for |5 days salary multiplied for the

number of years of service.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 28624
Cuarrenl Non-current Current Non-current
Gratuily i.89 5.82 1.39 5,09
Total employee benefit abligations 1.59 582 £.39 5.04
(i) Reconcilintion of opening and cinstng balances of Defincd Benefit Obligation
Ason Ason

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation {DBO) at beginning of year 6.49 0.60
Current service cost 1.93 1.7l
Interest cost .46 -
Acluarial loss / {gain) recognised in other comprehensive income
2) changes in demogsaphic assumption (0.80) B
B) changes in financial assumptions 0.2¢ -
c} expericnce adjustments 041 1.25
Benefits paid (0.92) -
Fransfer In / {Oul} (0.05) 2.03
Defied Yenefit Obligation (DEQ) 2t year end 7.71 6.49

()} Expenses recognised duving the year

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 Mureh 31, 2024
Current service cost 193 171
Interest cost Q.46 -
Expenses recognised in Profit and loss 239 1.71

{iii} Expenses rec d in Other Comprchensive Income (OCIH

For the year ended

For the year ended

urch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2624
Avctuarial Losses/ (Gains) on obfigation for the year (0.20) 1.25
Net Expense/(Tucome) for the period recognised in OCT {0.20) 1,15

{iv) Actuarial assumptions

Deseription Gratuity as on March 31
2025 2024
Moriality Table (LIC) 100% of FALM 2012-14 100% of LALM
2012 - 14
Discount rate (p.a) % %%
Attrition Rate
Up to 30 years 49.31% 30.38%
From 31 10 44 years 27.88% 27.54%
Abuve 44 years 43.24% 25.00%
Rate of escalation in salary (p.a) 12.00% 12.00%
Retirerment age 60 Years 60 Years
(v) Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity
Particulars Tor the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 312025 Mareh 31 2024

Discount rate : +1% {0.27) {0.25)
Tiscount 1ale = -1% .31 027
Salary escalation rate : +1% 0.24 0.20
Satary escalation rate : -1% (0.19) {0.20})
Adtrition rate; +1%* {0.06) -

Altrition rate: -1%* 08 .06

The ubove sensilivily analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all ather assumptions canstant, When calealating the sensilivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit abligation calcutated with the prajected unit credit method a1 the end of she
reporting period) has been npplied os when caleulating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet. The Mortality does not have a significant impact on the Lisbility .
hence are nol considered a significant actuarial assumption for the purpose of Sensitivity anzlysis. The metheds anid types of assumiptions used ia preparing the sensitivity analysis

did nat cliange compared to the prior period.

The cxpeeled fulure contribulion and estimalted future benefit paymenls from the fund arc as follows

Gruluity
Expected gontzibution to the fund during the year ending March 31, 2024 Unfanded
Estimated benefit payments from the fand - Time period (in years)
Within | year 1.89
2 -5 years 5.08
6 -10 years 239
Above 10 year 0.73
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M Finarciul Enstruments - Falr values and risk management

A Accounting classificatlong and fafr values
Fair values zre categarised ik dilTecent lovels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpiils used in the valualion techrigues as fallows:
Level |+ Quoted prices unadiusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabHities
Level 2 - Inpuis other thim quoted prices included within Level 1 thal are obscrvable for the asset or fiability, <ither direatly {i.¢. as prices) or indizectly (i.¢. derived from prives)
Level 3 - inputs for the assets or liabilities thal are nol based ui observable market dals (unobseoyahble inputs)

The foluwing e shows the carrying amaunts and fair values of financial assets and linancial liahilitics, incuding their levels in the fairvalue hierrchy

As at March 31, 2025

Carrying value Falr volue
Particulars FVTPL FYTOCL  Amostised Tatak Level 1 Level?  Levell Tatak
costs carrylnp
ampunt
Financlal nssets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.19 0.1y - - - -
Trade receivahles - - 4.6 2426 - - - -
Investmenis 1,792.03 246 - 1.794.49 1,791.03 - 246 1.794.49
Oiber finaneind assels - - 1.27 L2y - - - -
1,791.03 246 15.72 1,820.11 1,792.03 - .45 1,194.49
Flnanclah Hab$ttes
Trade payublcs - 146,28 146.28 - - - -
- 14628 E46.28 - - - -
As at March 31, 2624
Carrying value Fair value
Facticulars FVYTPL FVYTocl  Amortised Totuk Levell  Level2  Level3 Tutat
cosls earrylng
ameung
Firancia] assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.uE 008 - - -
Frade receivables - - 13.06 13.06 - - - -
Investinents 172831 246 - 1,730.77 L7431 - 246 1,239,727
Chber financial assels - - 3.03 B.05 - - - -
1,728.31 24h 2E.19 E751.96 171831 - 246 113097
Finaaclat Habitlics
“Trade payables - 12038 120,28 - - " -
1case Habilitics - - 17.40 L1140
- 137.6% 13764 - - - -

The company does nat have any financial asset or Eabilitics nwasitred al fair value through other comprehensive income.
Far investmients measured al FVOCT (Level 3) the company has considered the most recent available valuation of investments whose fir value is determined basis net assel vohue,

The company his not separately diselosed the fsir valies for financial assets and liabiliies other tham investments, because their curying amounts are a reasomble appraximsion of the fir values,

B Valuation technlyte wsed to determine fajr values

Specific vatuation technique to value Bnancial institmients like:
1. Use al quoted matket prices Jor Jinancial instrunients traded in aclive markets.

i, Compamble company iple/dis | cash Mow onalysis far olher financial imnstouments.

i, The lair vahees for Fnancial assels and fiabilities other than favestments are disclosed at there camying valee as Uil camying amounts ore a reasonable approximation of the fiir values.

14 Finsariat instruments — Falr valees and rlsit management (continwed)

C Finandlal thhk anagentent
‘The Company has cxpostre ke the following nisks ansing from financial instruments:
(i) Credit risk;
(i} Liquidity risk; and
ol sk

Risk maragenent framework

The Cumpany’s Board nf directors has overail responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk mansgement framework. The Company's tisk managemen policies arc established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Company, ta sel appropeiate tisk limits and contruts and T msonier risks and adherence to Hmits, Risk managemenl paticies und systens are ro wed cepufardy i reflect changes in markel conditions and Use
Company's activilics. The Campany, through its Imining and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive coniral cnviramnent i which all conployoes understand their roles and
obligatigas.

£ Credlt dsk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Lhe Company iC o custoner or countcrparty to a financinl instrumcnt 12ils to et 115 o 1 abligatiows, and arises principally from the Company's reecivables from customrs. Credit
risk arises fram cash hetd with banks ad Tiucisl institutions, as well as credit exposur to clionts, including 1ude receivable. The maxinum exposure e credit sk it equal (o the carrying value of the financial assets. The
abjective of nuinagitig counterpany credit risk is 1o provent logses i Bnancial assets. The Conpany assesses the credit guality of the counterpasties, Waking into account their Ninanckat posithon, past expericace and ather factors,

The altowance for lifetime expected credit Toss on trade seceivables for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 was INR M.
Cash and cash equivalents
Credit tisk on cash and cash equivalents it limsited as e Company gencrally invests in deposits with banks asd linancial institutions wilh high credit ratings assigned by domeslic eredil raling agencies.

Trade Recelvahles [

T measure lie expected ceedit osses, e Campany has o farge nurher of customer base with shared credil risk charcleristics. As per palicy af the Company, trde reccivahble ta fic cxient ot covered by collateral (i.c. uasccured
trade reccivable) is considered for compulation of loss atk and (he amount ol loss is recogaised in the Statement of Pralil and Loss. Trude receivable of the group are of shoit duration, Though wade receivables are due are
short duralion thete are certain instances of defay in vollection. The Group has computed expected credit [oss due 1o delay in collection.
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24 Finaneial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

ii. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company has managed its
liquidity and working capital requirements tirough cash generated from operations and through intermittent short ferm borrewings. The Company has sufficient
short termy fund based lines, which provides healthy liquidity and these carry highest credit quality rating from reputed credit rating agency, hence no liquidity risk is
perceived,

The tables below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at:

Contractual cash flaws

March 31, 2025 Carrying amount 6 monthsorless  Duein6-12 Duein 1 -2 Due More than
months year 2 years

Non-dervivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 146.28 146.28 - - -

Other financial liahilities
Lease liabilities - - - - -

146.28 146,28 - - -

Contractual cash flows

Marech 31, 2024 Carrying amount 6 months or less Duein 6-12 Dueinl1-2  Due More than
monihs year 1 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables 120.28 120.28 - - -
Qther financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 17.40 4.46 4.87 B.06 -
137.68 124,74 4.87 8.06 -

fii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises of
three types of risks: intcrest rate risk, price tisk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes trade receivable/payable, other financial
assets and liabilities. The Company is not exposed to any significant market risks,

(a} Inierest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wiil fluctnate because of changes in market interest rates. The interest
rate risk can also impact the provision for retiral benefits. The Company generally utilises fixed rate boreowings and therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since
neither the carrying amount nor the fature cash flows will fluctuate because of change in the market interest rates. The Company is not expesed to significant
interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.

(h) Currency risk

Forcign cuerency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Exposures can
arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.

The Company does not have into any foreign currency denominated assets or liaiblities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. Accordingiy, the Company is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk.
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24 Finaneial instruments — Fair values and risk managenicnt (continued)
24 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

¢. Maturity Analysis of Assets And Liabilitics
The below table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected 10 be recovered or settled.

As at Mareh 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(L.ess than 12 (More than 12 (Less than £2 (More than 12
months} maonths) maonths) maonths)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0,19 - 0.08 -
Trade receivables 24.26 - 13.06 -
Investments 1,792,03 2.46 1,728.31 2.46
Other financial assets - 1.27 3.87 4,18
Current lax assets (net) 2.49 - - 1.98
Property, plant and equipment - 5.79 - 2.51
Right-of-use assets - - - £7.38
Other non-financial assets 104.45 - 26.47 -
1,923.42 952 177079 2851
Liahilities
Trade payables
i. Total owtstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - 0.17 -
ii, Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 146.28 - 120,11 -
small enterprises
Lease liability - - 9.33 8.06
Provisions 1.89 5.82 1.39 5.09
Other non-financiak Habilities 7.69 - 9.69 -
155.86 5.82 140.69 13.16

iv. Capital Management

Tie Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital basc so as to maintain investor, creditor and nyarket confidence and to sustain future development of the
business, The Company monitors the returm on capital and its objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so 48 to maximize sharcholder
vatue. During the year the company has raised funds by way of borrowings and the cash and bank balances including liguid investments significantly exceeds the
borrowings accordingly the nct debt is Nil and consequently net gearing ratio is also Nil.

The spuce has been lefi blank intentionally
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25 Contingent linbifities and commitments (1o 1he extent nol provided for)

Parliculars

As at
March 3§, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

a} Contingent Linkilitics
b) Commitments

Eslinaled amount ol conleacts renmining to be cxecuted on capilal acoount and not provided for :
¢} Claims against the Company rot acknowledged as debis

The Company did not have any long term contracls including derivative contracts for which there were any materiat foreseeabie fosses.

26 Earnings per share (EPS).

The follswing table sets farth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Earnings
Profit for tlie year allributable o cquity sharebolders for caleulation of basic and diluted EPS (In ENR Miltions) {575.38) (377.830)
Sharey
Weighted average number of equify shares outstanding during the year for caleulation of basic EPS {In Millions) 182.94 122.62
Effect of dilutive potentint equily shares - -
Weiphted average er of eyuity shares for cul of ditwled EPS (I Jukhs) £82.94 122.62
Basic earnings per share {3.15) (3.08)
Diluled earnings per share {3.15) (3.08)
Nosminak value per share 16.00 14.00

27 Related party disclosures
A Nanses of related parties and refated party relationship with whem transactions have taken place

Name

Type

Bitlionbrains Garage Ventures Limited (formely
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Privale
Limited)

Holding Company (From August 22, 2024)

Groww Invest Tech Private Limited (Formely keown
as Wextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Fellow Subsidiary (w,e.f Aug 22, 2024)

Groww Serv Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiory (w,e.f May 02, 2023)

Groww Trustee Linvited

Fellow Subsidinry (w,e.f May 92, 2023)

ftoshan Dave

Key management 1 | (w,e.f May 02, 2023)

Varur Gupta

Key management personniel (w,e.f May 02, 2023)

Pritik Lakhotia

Key management personnel {w,e.f May 02, 2023)

Ashish Gael

Independent Director

Neer chauddiy

Independent Director (till February 19,2025)

Anamika Agarwal

Independent Dircctor (w.e.f February 19,2025)

Harsh Jain

Key | (w.c.f May 02, 2023)

nent |
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Groww Agset Mawsagement Limlted (Fermerly known as Indiabubls Asset Munugement Company Limited)
Notes to the financisl statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amonnts are in INR Mitlions unless othenvise siated)

27 Related party disclosures (Continued)

B. The fotlawing transactlons were carried out with the related partics in the ovdinary course of business:

Name of related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended
Masch 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Billionbraing Garage Ventures Limited (formety
known as Billionbrains Garage Ventures Private
Limited)

Groww Envest Teeh Private Limited (Formely koown

Groww Trustee Limited

Neobillien Fintech Private Limited

Key management personnel

Independent PHrector

Issue of Complusory Convertible Preference shares
Software, Server & Platform Charges

Professional and Consulling Charges

Share based payments

Expenses incurred by related party on behalf of Company
Reimbuesement paid

Expenses incurred by Company on behalfl of reluted party
Reimbursement recovered

Rent expense

Tssue of equity shares (including securities premium)

Expenses incurred by related parly on behalf of Company
Advances recovered

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursemens recovered

Rent expense

Issue of equity shares (including securities premium)

Expenses incuwed by related party on behaif of Company
Reimbursement paid

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement paid

Rental Income

Expenses incurred by Company on behalf of related party
Reimbursement poid

Reintbursement recovered

Reimbursenment recovered

Expenses incurred by refated party on behalf of Company
Reimbursemenl paid

Short term employee benefils
Post employement benefits*

Sitting fees

14.63
13.717
3713

166,41

(200.49)

.21y
2.8%
11.05

(500.00)

0407

(0.13)
0.13

0.06
0.06)

(0.10)

0.03
it
.60

2391
1.34

4.80

8.30
16.80
1.75

125.18

(85.46)
.27

£ 60
436

12.72
0N
031
281
1,015.00
092
{0.92}
(0.23)

(0.10)

16.97
L.75

4.39

C.  Outstanding balances

Reluted Pariy

Particulars

Asat
Mareh 31, 2025

As at
Maveh 31, 2024

Neobillion Fintech Private Limited

Groww Serv Privale Limited (Formerly known as
Billionbrains Capitsl Private Limited)

Groww [nvest Tech Private Limited (Formely known
as Nextbillion Technology Private Limited)

Billionbraing Gavage Venlures Limited (formely
Lnown as Biflionbrains Garage Ventures Private

Groww Trustee Limited

Key munagement personnel

Trade Payable

Receivable from related party
Trade Payablc

Receivable from related party
Trade Payable

Reccivable from related party
Trade Payable

Trade Receivable

Receivable from related party

Provision post employement bencfits*

{0.11)

(40.85)

0.03

(2.22)

.19

0407

(39.72)
2.67

{0.92)

0.23

(1.75)

*Transactions and balances with key management personnel for the year ended March 31, 2025 is basis allocation for gratuity of key management personnel obtained from actuary.
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Notes to the Mnanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts are in INR Millions unless othenvise stated)
28 Share Based Paynents

The holding Compauy has Employee $tock Opticn Scheme samely "Billionbrains Garage Ventures Limited Employee Stock Oplion Scheme 2024 (formerly knewn as Billionbrains Garage Venturss
Private Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024 (BGV ESOS 2024')) , which was replaced from Groww lnc 2017 Stock Incentive Plan ("GSIP 2017") subsequent to the approval of the scheme
of merger between Groww Enc., State of Delaware, USA and the Company by the Hon'ble NCLT via merger ordes daled 28th March 2024,

BGV ESOS 2024 is prepared basis the same terms and conditions as of GSIP 2017 except on ihe exercise period of the options which is medified 1o twenty years from existing ten years and excreise
price has been modified to INR 10 from excreise price $0.27 - §91,3453 for all the options. Fusther, the options of GSIP 2017 have been adjusted for swap ratio i.c., for cvery onc (1) eption leld
under GSIP 2017, such option helders shall be grasted Lwo point two (2.2) options under BGV ESOS 2024 as applicd Lo sharcholders and have been restaled as if they were available of carliest
reporting pericd in the restated consolidated financial information, irrespective of their actoal date.

On 28 June 2024, the board of directors of holding company approved the BGY ESOS 2024 for issue of stock options 10 the permanent emplayees including Directors of the Cempany (other han
Promotee(s) of person helonging to the Promoter Group of the Company, Independent Directors, if any, ard Dircctors halding directly or indircetly more than 10% of the oulstanding equity shares of
the Company} and its subsidiaries (hercinafier referred to as an “Employee(s)”). The board of directors has constituted an ESOP commitéce for implementation and administration of BGY ESOS 2024,
The employee selected by the ESOP committee from time to time will be entitled to options, subject 1o satisfaction of the preseribed vesting conditions, viz., continaing cenployment and subject to
performance pasameters defined in the BGV ESOS 2024,

Stock options granted under BGY ESOS 2024/GSIP 2017 would vest based on the terms and conditions mentioned in the respective letter of Grant/stock option grant notice. The company/erstwhile
holding company has issued stock options with a vesting period of 12 - 48 months will: a cliff of 12 months and fielly vested stock optiens.

For stock options granted under BGY BSOS 2024, the weighled average fair value of options during the year eaded 31 March 2025 was INR 20.31 and for stock options granted under GSEP 2017, the
weighted average $air valic of oplions during the year 31 March 2024 - $18.48. As at 31 March 2025, the weighted average contruelual remaining life of options is 14.81 years.

Elighile employces were provided with an altensative of cash or share based payment for performance bonuses. Pursuant o the same, the Campany paid performance bonus in the form of stack
options amounting to INR 4.10 Million (31 March 2024 - INR 5.46 Million) which is included as part of Salaries, altowances and bonus.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 -
(i) the holding Company has issued bonus in the ratio of 14:1 to all (he existing shareholders whose names appear in the registes of members of the Campany as on 9 August 2024, Hence, each option
granted under BGV ESOS 2024 would be cligible fos 15 equily shares upon cxcerise.

(i} the holding Company has further issucd bonus in the ratio of 10:1 to all the existing sharcholders whose names sppear in the register of members of the Company as en 29 Jaouary 2025. Hence,
cach option granted under BGYV ESOS 2024 would be cligible for L. equity shases upon excerise over and above point (i).

{iii) The holding Company has sub-divided | equity share having a face value of INR 10/~ each fully paid up into 5 equity shares having a face value of INR 2/- each fully paid up, Hence, each option
granted under BGV ESOS 2024 has been sub-divided into 5 options with an excercise price of INR 2/~ The effect of the same have been restated as if they weare available of earliest reporting peried in
the financial statcments, irrespective of their actual date.

Accordingly options granted shall have conversion ratio as below:

(i) options granted upto 9 August 2024 shali have a conversion ratio of 16.5:1.

{ii) options granted fram 9 August 2024 to 28 January 2025 shall lave a conversion ratio of 1.):L
(iii} optipas granted frony 29 Jaouary 2025 shall have a comyersion matio of 1:1.

Reconciliation of share options during Lhe financial year:

Particulars 3F March 2025 31 Nlarch 2024
Outstanding as at the beginring of the year 20,72,005 -
- Giranted/ (Transferred l) 10,73,47i 20,72,005
- Farfeited/(Transferred Out} (3,09,185) -
Ouistandirg as at the end of the year 28.,36,291 20,72,005
Vested as at the end of the year 16,09.565 19,946,625

Tair valuc of stock oplions granted

The fair value of e sieck options granted is cstimated at (he grant date using arm’s fengih price of the stock oplions computed based on the Black-Scholes model, taking into sccount the lerms and
conditions upon which the stock options were granted. The inputs used to measure fair values of options granted on the grant date were as follows:

31 March 2025 31 Maveh 2024
Dividend yicld (3% p.a.) 0% 0%
Expected volatitity (% p.a)) 48.6% - 49.1% 45% - 47.2%
Risk-free jnterest rate (% p.a.) 6.69% - 7.0% 3.6% - 4.6%
Expected life of optien (years) 10.75 - 1477 6,50 -7.00
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Notes to the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al amaunts are in INR Millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs has issued on Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payahle to such enterprises us at 31 March 2025 has been made in the
financial statements bused on information received and available with the company, Further, in management’s view, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the Act') is not expected to be material.

As at Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 3024
The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

- Principal amount - 017
- Interest due (hereon - -
The amount of interest paid by the company along with the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during the year - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) R 2
but without adding the interest under this Act

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, till actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disall as a deductible expenditure. = -
Total outstanding principal dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises included in Trade Payables (Nate 10) - 0.17

30 Segment Reporting

The ultimate holding company prepares the lidated financial In I with Ind AS 108 on operating segments, the Company has nat disclosed the segments information in the standalone financial

statements,

31 No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiwn or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entilics
("I liaries") with the wnds fing, whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not
received any fund from any parties (funding party) with the understanding that the Campany shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or behalf of the Company ("Ultimale
Beneficiaries”) or provide any gurantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.

32 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Dircctors of the Company on June 25, 2021, considered and approved the demerger of Alterative Investment Funds (AIF) and Portfolio Management Seevices (PMS) business (collectively
the "Demerged Business") of the Company to Indiabulls Investment Management Limited (formerly Indiabulls Venture Capital Management Company Limited) ("IIML"), by way of a scheme of

armngement ("the Scheme of Armangement"), subject to the approvals/ permissions of the regulatory authorities in terms of the provisions of Section 230 to 232 af the Companies Act, 2013 and other
aonolicable laws.

Cc quently, the Company has received the formal order dated September 13, 2022 issued by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide order reference No.
NCLT/Reg//F0O/2022/1087 and requisite approval from the Securilies and Exchange Board of India for implementation of the Scheme of Arrangement. Accordingly, the Company made necessary
adjustments 1o its books of accounts to give effect to the Scheme of A t with the Appointed Date as April 1, 2021 ("Appointed Date"). As a resull. the Company has recorded goodwill ( net ) of
Rs. 1,020.59 lakhis which has been adjusted in the Reserves and Surplus as at March 31,2023 . As stipulated under the Scheme ol Arrangement, the Company has transterred all property and rights and
liabilities and dutics and employees pertaining to the Demerged Business to TIML, Further, the Company has made requisite submissions with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana and reduced
its authorized and issued and paid up equity share capital from Rs. 17,000 lakhs divided into 17,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 10,000 lakhs divided into 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10 each, in compliance with the Scheme of Amangement,

The Scheme of Arangement has accordingly been given effect in the linancial statements with eftect from the Appointed Date in accardance with the Scheme of Arrangement and the applicable
accounting standards. As mentioned above, the Eamings per Equity Share and the figures in respect of the current year are comparable with the previous comparable year presented.
33 Key Ratios

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) (xvi) of Division 111 of Schedule TIT amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the Company as il is in asset mangement business and not
an NBFC registered under Section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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